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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial statements

OPERATING RESULT Note 2021 2020
$'000 $'000
Income
Appropriation revenue 2 5,713,024 5,440,647
User charges and fees 3 615,524 671,121
Grants and other contributions 4 187,184 269,614
Service concession arrangements revenue 15 232,180 232,180
Other revenue 33,422 43,200
Total revenue 6,781,334 6,656,762
Gains on disposal of assets 4,073 3,384
Total income 6,785,407 6,660,146
Expenses
Employee expenses 5 603,083 633,538
Supplies and services 7 4,003,392 3,719,341
Grants and subsidies 8 695,471 610,497
Finance and borrowing costs 9 117,878 121,778
Impairment losses 11 2,375 2,651
Depreciation and amortisation 13, 14, 15 1,277,978 1,283,728
Other expenses 10 40,094 52,328
Total expenses 6,740,271 6,423,861
Operating result before income tax equivalent expense 45,136 236,285
Income tax equivalent expense 21 7,930 75541
OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 37,206 228,744
Items not reclassified to operating result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 14, 15 2,953,688 3,986,112
Total other comprehensive income 2,953,688 3,986,112
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2,990,894 4,214,856

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2021

Note 2021 2020
Assets $'000 $'000
Current assets
Cash 344,348 338,495
Receivables 11 222,840 122,913
Inventories 16,010 13,681
Prepayments 12 107,635 28,470
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 4,515 2,587
Total current assets 695,348 506,146
Non-current assets
Receivables 11 3,229 3,285
Prepayments 12 181,759 171,264
Intangible assets 13 226,772 76,198
Property, plant and equipment 14 74,582,028 69,808,407
Service concession assets 15 11,876,959 11,840,038
Deferred tax assets 21 3,852 5,942
Right-of-use assets 169 211
Investment in subsidiary 24 5,601 5,601
Total non-current assets 86,880,369 81,910,946
Total assets 87,575,717 82,417,092
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Payables 16 687,167 602,853
Borrowings 17 36,716 44,249
Provisions 18 195,097 228,440
Accrued employee benefits 19 31,231 72,978
Current tax liabilities 21 - 473
Unearned revenue — Service concession arrangements 15 232,179 232,179
Other 20 191,118 93,686
Total current liabilities 1,373,508 1,274,858
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,219,134 1,264,304
Provisions 18 238,474 254,567
Unearned revenue — Service concession arrangements 15 7,387,494 7,619,674
Total non-current liabilities 8,845,102 9,138,545
Total liabilities 10,218,610 10,413,403
NET ASSETS 773575107 72,003,689
Equity
Contributed equity 63,271,312 60,908,788
Accumulated surplus 3,908,581 3,871,375
Asset revaluation surplus 10,177,214 7,223,526
TOTAL EQUITY 77,357,107 72,003,689

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial statements

Note 2021 2020
$'oo0 $'o00

Contributed equity
Opening balance 60,908,788 59,492,190
Restatement of opening balance * - (44,662)
Transactions with owners as owners:

Appropriated equity injections 2 2,363,643 1,489,060

Net asset transfer to other Queensland Government entities (1,119) (27,800)
Closing balance 63,271,312 60,908,788
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Opening balance 3,871,375 2,024,672
Restatement of opening balance * - (122,974)
Net effect of changes on application of AASB 16 Leases 16,318
Net effect of changes on application of
AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors 1 - 1,724,615
Operating result for the year 37,206 228,744
Closing balance 3,908,581 3,871,375
Asset revaluation surplus
Opening balance 7,223,526 3,237,414
Increase in asset revaluation surplus 14, 15 2,953,688 3,986,112
Closing balance 10,177,214 7,223,526
TOTAL EQUITY 77,357,107 72,003,689
The closing balance of Asset revaluation surplus comprises:
Land 2,299,876 1,738,575
Buildings 95,999 117,306
Heritage and cultural 3,614 3,272
Infrastructure 7,151,754 4,964,337
Major property, plant and equipment 86,980 67,736
Service concession assets 538,991 332,300
Closing balance 10,177,214 7,223,526

* Land and buildings have been restated due to derecognition of assets disposed in prior years. Refer to Note 14.

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Accounting policy

Non-reciprocal transfers of assets and liabilities between wholly-owned Queensland State Public Sector entities are
adjusted to contributed equity. These adjustments are made in accordance with Interpretation 1038 Contributions by
Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities. Appropriations for equity adjustments are similarly designated.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00

Cash flows from operating activities

Inflows:

Service appropriation receipts 5,632,724 5,487,765

User charges and fees 559,313 705,713

Grants and other contributions 182,162 265,169

GST input tax credits from ATO 749,290 697,544

GST collected from customers 67,466 74,760

Other 29,721 26,106

Outflows:

Employee expenses (650,182) (595,881)

Supplies and services (3,936,787) (3,941,695)

Grants and subsidies (685,465) (584,124)

Finance and borrowing costs (94,177) (124,953)

GST paid to suppliers (771,361) (700,299)

GST remitted to ATO (66,449) (75,833)

Income tax equivalent paid (8,799) (4,440)

Other (15,193) (37,473)
Net cash provided by operating activities 992,263 1,192,359
Cash flows from investing activities

Inflows:

Sales of property, plant and equipment 3,430 11,493

Outflows:

Payments for property, plant and equipment (3,260,501) (2,754,720)

Payments for intangibles (21,963) (18,834)

Payment for investment in subsidiary - (5,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,279,034) (2,767,061)
Cash flows from financing activities

Inflows:

Equity injections 3,498,060 2,633,647

Outflows:

Equity withdrawals (1,134,417) (1,144,587)

Borrowing redemptions (71,019) (145,542)

Other - (1,850)
Net cash provided by financing activities 2,292,624 1,341,668

Net increase/(decrease) in cash 5,853 (233,034)

Cash — opening balance 338,495 571,529
CASH - CLOSING BALANCE 344,348 338,495

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Cash disclosures

Cash represents all cash on hand, cash at bank and cheques receipted but not banked at 30 June.

The departmental bank accounts are grouped within the whole of government banking set-off arrangement with Queensland
Treasury Corporation and do not earn interest. The department has an overdraft facility with the Commonwealth Bank of
Australia with an approved limit of $200m (2020: $200m). There is no interest charged on this overdraft facility.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial statements

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING RESULTTO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
OPERATING RESULT 37,206 228,744
Non-cash items included in operating result
Goods, services and assets received at below fair value (5,121) (5,037)
Gains on disposal of assets (4,073) (3,384)
Gain on finance lease modification (5,469) (8,952)
Assets provided at below fair value 13,406 11,050
Service concession arrangements revenue (232,180) (232,180)
Depreciation and amortisation 1,277,978 1,283,728
Loss on disposed assets 24,901 14,855
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (99,871) 25,876
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (2,329) (1,400)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (89,660) (80,290)
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income tax equivalents 2,090 135
Increase/(decrease) in payables (3,528) (62,440)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued employee benefits (41,747) 34,362
Increase/(decrease) in current tax liabilities (473) 473
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 121,133 (13,181)
Net cash provided by operating activities 992,263 1,192,359
CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BORROWINGS - Note 17
Opening balance 1,308,553 1,237,716
New borrowings — New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 218,482
New borrowings — leases 294 3,961
Accrued repayments 23,491 (3,362)
Remeasurement of liability (5,469) (2,702)
Non-cash changes 18,316 216,379
Cash repayments (71,019) (145,542)
Closing balance 1,255,850 1,308,553
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION

Refer to individual notes for specific accounting policies.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The department has prepared these financial statements in compliance with section 38 of the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019.

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accrual basis in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations and requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities.
Except where stated, historical cost is used as the measurement basis in the financial statements.

The financial statements are authorised forissue by the Director-General and Chief Finance Officer at the date of signing of
the management certificate.
THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Department of Transport and Main Roads is a Queensland Government department established under the Public Service
Act 2008. The department is controlled by the State of Queensland which is the ultimate parent. The principal address of
the department is:

61 Mary Street
Brisbane, Queensland 4000

The objectives of the department are:

e Accessible — Tailored connections for our customers and workforce to create an integrated and inclusive network
e Safe — Safe and secure customer journeys and Department of Transport and Main Roads workplaces

e Responsive — Our network, services and workforce respond to current and emerging customer expectations

e Efficient — Partnerships, integration, innovation and technology advance the movement of people and goods

e Sustainable — Planning, investment and delivery outcomes support a more liveable and prosperous Queensland.

The financial statements include the value of all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the Department of
Transport and Main Roads.

The department has elected not to consolidate its investment in the controlled entity Transmax Pty Ltd in accordance with
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements. Refer to Note 24.
DEPARTMENTAL SERVICES AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The identity and purpose of the services and principal activities undertaken by the Department of Transport and Main Roads
during the reporting period are as follows:

Transport system investment planning and programming

The objective of this service area is to provide policy, planning and investment frameworks to deliver an integrated
transport network accessible to everyone.

Transport infrastructure management and delivery
The objective of this service area is to construct, maintain and operate an integrated transport network accessible to all.
Transport safety and regulation

The objective of this service area is to enhance the safety of the transport system through quality regulation, road and
maritime safety programs.

Customer experience

The objective of this service area is to understand evolving customer needs and expectations, to improve customer
experiences and reduce complaints.

Passenger transport services

The objective of this service area is to connect Queensland through the delivery of customer focused passenger transport
services.

Transport infrastructure construction and maintenance (RoadTek)

RoadTek provides transport infrastructure solutions, including construction and maintenance services to enable the
department to deliver on Queensland Government priorities and outcomes for the community.

Annual Report 2020-21
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION (continued)
AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

The department performs certain transactions in an agent capacity, and the receipts of such funds are not considered to be
revenue for the department, nor are payments of these amounts considered to be expenses of the department. These
transactions are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed in these notes for the information of users.
Significant agency transactions are disclosed in Note 26.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical accounting
estimates, assumptions, and management judgements that have potential to cause a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next reporting period. Such estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in future periods as relevant.

Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement notes:
e Note 11 Receivables

¢ Note 13 Intangible assets

e Note 14 Property, plant and equipment

e Note 15 Public private partnerships

* Note 18 Provisions.

CURRENCY, ROUNDING AND COMPARATIVES

Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1000, or
where that amount is $500 or less, to zero, unless disclosure of the full amount is specifically required.

Comparative information is restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current reporting period.

CLIMATE RISK DISCLOSURE

The department has not identified any material climate related risks relevant to the financial statements at the reporting
date, however constantly monitors the emergence of such risks under the Queensland Government’s Climate Transition
Strategy.

No adjustments to the carrying value of recorded assets or other adjustments to the amounts recorded in the financial
statements were recognised during the financial year.

FINANCIAL IMPACTS FROM THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The department continuously assesses the financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, particularly in relation to fare
revenue. The financial impact from reduced public transport patronage is estimated to cost the department $173m in
2020-21 compared to pre-pandemic level.

NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

No Australian Accounting Standards have been early adopted in 2020-21.

Effective for the first time in 2020-21

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors

The department applied AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors for the first time in 2020-21. The nature
and effect of changes resulting from the adoption of AASB 1059 are described below.

AASB 1059 applies to public private partnerships, also known as service concession arrangements, which involve the grant
of a right to an operator to provide public services related to a service concession asset on behalf of a grantor and to
manage at least some of those services under its own discretion, rather than at the direction of the grantor.

In addition, the grantor must control the asset, which is demonstrated by:
e controlling or regulating services the operator must provide with the asset and to whom it must provide them, and
e controlling any significant residual interest in the asset at the end of the term of the arrangement.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND BASIS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PREPARATION (continued)
NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (continued)
Effective for the first time in 2020-21 (continued)

The grantor recognises a service concession asset upon gaining control of the asset. The asset is initially measured at
current replacement cost and subsequently depreciated over the asset’s useful life. Where an existing asset of the grantor
becomes a service concession asset, the asset is reclassified as a service concession asset and is revalued to current
replacement cost.

The nature of the liability recognised depends on how the operator is compensated for the asset, where the grantor:

e makes capital payments to the operator, the grantor recognises a financial liability. Payments to the operator for services
are not included in the financial liability but are expensed as incurred. The financial liability accrues interest and is
reduced when capital payments are made to the operator.

e grants the operator a right to earn revenue from users of the asset or a right to access another revenue generating asset
for the operator’s own use. In this case the grantor recognises an unearned revenue liability which is recognised as
revenue over the concession period, reflecting the economic substance of the arrangement.

Public private partnership arrangements that do not fall within scope of AASB 1059 are assessed under other accounting
standards to determine the appropriate accounting treatment.

The transitional impact of the adoption of AASB 1059 as at 1 July 2019 is as follows:

Category Sm |Measurement basis

Service concession assets 9,808 |Current replacement cost as at 1 July 2019

Unearned revenue liabilities (8,084) |Current replacement cost of service concession assets at 1 July 2019
adjusted to reflect the remaining period of the service concession
arrangement.

Accumulated surplus (1,724) [The difference between the service concession assets and the sum of
the financial liabilities and unearned revenue liabilities. This reflects
revenue already earned priorto 1 July 2019.

Refer to Note 15 and 17 for disclosures on the department's service concession arrangements.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
2 APPROPRIATIONS
Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to appropriation revenue
recognised in operating result
Budgeted appropriation revenue 5,673,004 5,369,201
Treasurer's advance - 4,400
Transfers from other headings (40,280) 114,164
Total appropriation received 5,632,724 5,487,765
Less: Opening balance of appropriation revenue receivable = -
Plus: Closing balance of appropriation revenue receivable 19,010
Plus: Opening balance of deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund 61,290 14,172
Less: Closing balance of deferred appropriation payable to Consolidated Fund - (61,290)
Net appropriation revenue 5,713,024 5,440,647
Appropriation revenue recognised in Statement of comprehensive income 5,713,024 5,440,647
Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to equity adjustment
recognised in contributed equity
Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation 2,019,337 1,628,456
Transfers to other headings 344,306 (119,164)
Lapsed equity adjustment - (20,232)
Equity adjustment receipts 2,363,643 1,489,060
Equity adjustment recognised in contributed equity 2,363,643 1,489,060
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

2 APPROPRIATIONS (continued)
Accounting policy

Appropriations provided under the Appropriation (2020—-2021) Act 2021 are recognised as revenue when received. Where
the department has an obligation to return unspent or unapplied appropriation receipts to the Consolidated Fund at year
end, a deferred appropriation repayable liability to the Consolidated Fund is recognised with a corresponding reduction to
appropriation revenue, reflecting the net appropriation revenue position with the Consolidated Fund for the reporting
period. Capital appropriations are recognised as adjustments to equity.

2021 2020

$'000 $'000
3 USER CHARGES AND FEES
Compulsory third party administration fees 38,271 36,943
Fare revenue * 208,942 288,690
Merchant fees collected 9,552 8,001
National Heavy Vehicle Regulator 19,997 21,302
Personalised plates sales 86,146 53,423
Pilotage 94,532 98,265
Property rental 28,962 32,158
Recoverable works 14,328 4,440
Registration fee surcharge 20,339 20,907
Services rendered 29,999 40,858
Toll revenue 18,748 9,302
Other 45,708 56,832
Total 615,524 671,121

* Fare revenue has decreased across passenger transport services due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.

Accounting policy

User charges and fees are recognised as performance obligations are met and as goods or services are provided to the
customer.

4 GRANTS AND OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS

Goods, services and assets received at below fair value 5,022 4,445
Grants from Motor Accident Insurance Commission * 4,240 10,159
Grants from Queensland Health ** 12,856 -
Grants from Queensland Investment Corporation - 29,887
Grants from Queensland Reconstruction Authority *** 122,996 180,002
Subsidies from Department of Education for students with disabilities 39,568 39,221
Other 2,502 5,900
Total 187,184 269,614

* Grants received for road safety campaigns.
** Grants received for additional cleaning and sanitising costs incurred due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

*** Grants received for the rebuilding of transport infrastructure following natural disasters under the Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery
Arrangements (NDRRA) and Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements (DRFA).
Accounting policy

Grants, contributions and donations are non-reciprocal transactions where the department does not directly give
approximately equal value to the grantor.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

4 GRANTS AND OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS (continued)
Accounting policy (continued)

Where the grant agreement is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific perfformance obligations for the department to
transfer goods or services to a third-party on the grantor’s behalf, the transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers. In this case revenue is initially deferred as a contract liability and recognised as or when the
performance obligations are satisfied.

Otherwise, the grant is accounted for under AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, whereby revenue is recognised
upon receipt of the grant funding, except for special purpose capital grants received to construct non-financial assets
controlled by the department. Special purpose capital grants are recognised as unearned revenue when received, and
subsequently recognised progressively as revenue as the department satisfies its obligations under the grant through
construction of the asset.

Contributions of services are recognised only if the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated and
their fair value can be measured reliably. Where this is the case, the amount representing the fair value is recognised as
revenue with a corresponding expense for the same amount.

Contributed physical assets are recognised at their fair value.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
5 EMPLOYEE EXPENSES
Employee benefits
Annual leave levy 42,608 47,310
Employer superannuation contributions 59,064 57,820
Long service leave levy 12,034 12,564
Wages and salaries 472,400 496,226
Other employee benefits 4,367 4,158
Employee related expenses
Workers' compensation premium 2,821 3,197
Other employee related expenses 9,789 12,263
Total 603,083 633,538

The department's total employee expenditure was $846.384m in 2021 (2020: $849.508m). Of this $243.301m (2020:
$215.970m) was capitalised to construction work in progress leaving $603.083m (2020: $633.538m) reported as
employee expenses.

Number of full-time equivalent employees 7,382 7-333

Refer to Note 19 for the policies related to employee entitlements.

6  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND REMUNERATION EXPENSES

Key management personnel

The department’s responsible Minister, the Minister for Transport and Main Roads, is identified as part of the department’s
key management personnel, consistent with guidance included in AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures.

The following details for non-Ministerial key management personnel include those positions that form the department's
Executive Leadership Team (ELT) that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the department during the financial year. Further information on these positions can be found in the Annual Report under
the section titled Our Organisation.

Remuneration expenses

Ministerial remuneration entitlements are outlined in the Legislative Assembly of Queensland’s Members’ Remuneration
Handbook. The department does not bear any cost of remuneration for the Minister. The majority of Ministerial entitlements
are paid by the Legislative Assembly, with the remaining entitlements being provided by Ministerial Services Branch within
the Department of the Premier and Cabinet.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

6  KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND REMUNERATION EXPENSES (continued)

Remuneration expenses (continued)

As all Ministers are reported as key management personnel of the Queensland Government, aggregate remuneration
expenses for all Ministers is disclosed in the Queensland General Government and Whole of Government Consolidated
Financial Statements, which are published as part of Queensland Treasury’s Report on State Finances.

Remuneration policy for the department's key management personnel is set by the Queensland Public Service Commission
as provided for under the Public Service Act 2008. The remuneration and other terms of employment for the key
management personnel are specified in employment contracts. The contracts may provide for other benefits including a
motor vehicle allowance, however they do not provide for the provision of performance payments.

The following disclosures focus on the expenses incurred by the department for non-Ministerial personnel during the
reporting period attributable to the key management positions.

Remuneration expenses for key management personnel comprise the following components:
e Short term employee expenses including:
- salaries, allowances and leave entitlements earned and expensed for the entire year or for that part of the year
during which the employee occupied the specified position
- non-monetary benefits and any applicable fringe benefits tax.
® Long term and post employment expenses including:
- amounts expensed in respect of long service leave entitlements earned
- amounts expensed in respect of employer superannuation obligations.
e Termination benefits include payments in lieu of notice on termination and other lump sum separation entitlements
payable on termination of employment.

1July 2020 - 30 June 2021

Short term Long term Termination Total
employee and post benefits expenses
Position ex:enZes emplozment P
expenses
$'o00 $'o00 S'oo0 S'o00
Director-General 577 79 656
Deputy Director-General
(Customer Services, Safety and Regulation) S0 5 344
Deputy Director-General
(Infrastructure Management and Delivery) 313 5 351
Deputy Director-General
(Policy, Planning and Investment) 309 E8 347
/Acting Deputy Director-General
(Policy, Planning and Investment)
(02.07.2020-12.07.2020) 26 3 29
(05.12.2020-27.12.2020)
(21.06.2021-25.06.2021)
Deputy Director-General
(TransLink) 276 35 3u
Deputy Director-General
(Coprpg,rate) 281 35 316
Chief Operations Officer 252 31 283
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

6 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL AND REMUNERATION EXPENSES (continued)
Remuneration expenses (continued)

1July 2019 - 30 June 2020

Short term Long term | Termination Total
. employee and post benefits expenses
Position ex:en:es emplocment P
expenses
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Director-General 556 76 - 632
IActing Director-General
(31.07.2019-01.09.2019) 26 3 ’ 29
Deputy Director-General
(Customer Services, Safety and Regulation) 291 34 ’ 325
Deputy Director-General
(Infrastructure Management and Delivery) 294 35 ’ 329
Deputy Director-General
(Policy, Planning and Investment) 277 33 ’ 310
IActing Deputy Director-General
(Policy, Planning and Investment)
22 3 - 25

(31.07.2019—-15.08.2019)
(19.09.2019—06.10.2019)
Deputy Director-General
(TransLink) 316 39 i 355
Acting Deputy Director-General
(TransLink)

(23.08.2019-26.08.2019) 24 3 i 27
(14.10.2019—05.11.2019)

Deputy Director-General 6
(Corporate) 272 34 ’ 30
Chief Operations Officer 239 29 - 268

Performance payments

None of the non-Ministerial key management personnel remuneration packages provide for performance or bonus
payments.

Transactions with related parties of key management personnel

There are no related party transactions for non-Ministerial key management personnel during the period, other than
domestic transactions that form part of the usual course of business, which are not required to be reported as related party
disclosures.

2021 2020
$S'oo00 S'o00
7 SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
Administration 63,785 60,932
Contractors — including service contracts:
Administrative and professional 42,473 31,310
Information technology 40,725 29,580
Queensland Transport and Roads Investment Program (QTRIP) 446,053 382,950
Repairs and maintenance 55,263 62,546
Transport services — Queensland Rail * 1,912,301 1,794,172
Transport services — other 1,059,045 1,022,518
Other 31,466 24,961
Communication equipment and service charges 48,992 50,679
Motor vehicles — Qfleet 10,025 9,981
Office accommodation 51,258 48,635
Payments to other government agencies ** 44,694 46,330
Utilities 53,420 46,374
Raw materials 44,440 28,195
Other 99,452 80,178
Total 4,003,392 3,719,341
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

7 SUPPLIES AND SERVICES (continued)

* The department has a contract with Queensland Rail to provide rail passenger services in suburban and regional Queensland, and to
ensure the Queensland Rail network can support safe and reliable passenger and freight services.

** Queensland Government services include payments to Queensland Shared Services of $19.171m in 2021 (2020: $22.246m), the
Queensland Government's primary information services provider CITEC of $23.125m in 2021 (2020: $21.655m), and other government
entities $2.398m in 2021 (2020: $2.429m).

The department's total supplies and services expenditure was $7.109b in 2021 (2020: $6.317b). Of this $3.106b (2020:
$2.598b) was capitalised to construction work in progress leaving $4.003b (2020: $3.719b) reported as supplies and
services.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00

8 GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES
Assets provided to third parties at below fair value 13,406 11,050
Public transport 94,034 85,053
School transport 156,500 156,786
Transport infrastructure 313,822 244,605
Transport Infrastructure Development Scheme (TIDS) 82,923 97,717
Other 34,786 15,286
Total 695,471 610,497
9 FINANCE AND BORROWING COSTS
Interest on lease liabilities 91 94
Interest on service concession arrangements 48,369 50,629
Interest on New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 69,418 71,055
Total 117,878 121,778
Accounting policy
Finance costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
No borrowing costs are capitalised into qualifying assets.
10 OTHER EXPENSES
Queensland Audit Office — external audit fees * 750 686
Audit fees — other ** 793 1,699
Fees, permits and other charges 1,344 1,102
Insurance premiums 8,491 8,001
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment *** 24,551 10,730
Losses:

Public monies 222 356

Public property 34 291
Special payments:

Ex gratia payments **** 131 10,753

Court awarded damages **** 4 6,587

Compensation claims 2,302 7,370
Other 1,472 4,753
Total 40,094 52,328
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

10 OTHER EXPENSES (continued)

* Total audit fees quoted by the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2021 financial statements are $0.742m. Actual fees paid relating to

the 2020 audit were $0.727m.

** Relates mainly to probity audits associated with road infrastructure projects.

*** Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment has increased by $13.821m mainly due to disposals associated with the Cross River

Rail project.

**** Significant special payments made in 2020 relate to an ex-gratia payment for a transit development project and a court awarded

settlement for a roadworks project.

The department's total other expenses was $72.570m in 2021 (2020: $66.528m). Of this $32.476m (2020: $14.200m) was
capitalised to construction work in progress leaving $40.094m (2020: $52.328m) reported as other expenses.

Insurance

With the exception of bridge and tunnel assets, the department’s road assets are not insured. The risk associated with
these assets is therefore borne by government. In certain circumstances, damage to the road network may be proportionally
covered through the Australian Government’s Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements (previously Natural Disaster Relief

and Recovery Arrangements).

The department insures its open tender road construction contract activities for material damage, public and products
liability, environmental impairment liability and professional indemnity under the Principal Arranged Insurance Program. As
well as providing cover for the department and its employees, it also covers the other parties to open tender construction

contracts such as contractors and sub-contractors.

The department’s project risks and other non-current physical assets are insured through the Queensland Government
Insurance Fund, with the exception of land, and New Generation Rollingstock and Gold Coast Light Rail assets which are
insured by the service operator. Under this scheme the department’s liability is limited to $10,000 for each claim.

In addition, the department pays premiums to WorkCover Queensland for its obligations for employee compensation and

insures its fleet asset through the open insurance market.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
11 RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade debtors 99,549 44,579
Other debtors 4,707 4,059
Less: Loss allowance * (11,776) (10,050)
92,480 38,588
GST receivable 94,685 72,615
GST payable (7,804) (6,788)
86,881 65,827
Annual leave reimbursements 13,545 8,936
Appropriation revenue receivable 19,010 -
Long service leave reimbursements 3,210 2,467
Other 7,714 7,095
43,479 18,498
Total 222,840 122,913
Non-current
Sublease receivable 3,229 3,285
Total 3,229 3’285
* Movements in the loss allowance
Opening balance 10,050 8,172
Increase/(decrease) in allowance recognised in the operating result 2,375 2,651
Amounts written off during the year (653) (783)
Amounts recovered during the year previously written off 4 10
Closing balance ** 11,776 10,050

** Individually impaired financial assets are more than 9o days overdue.
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Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

Financial statements

11 RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables credit risk — ageing analysis

Overdue

Past due but not impaired 1-30 31-60 61-90 More than Total

days days days 90 days

$'o00 $'o00 $'o00 $'oo0 $'o00
2021
Trade debtors 2,093 524 533 1,458 4,608
2020
Trade debtors 3,633 177 37 7,810 11,657

Accounting policy

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery. Settlement on these amounts is

generally required within 30 days from invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with an allowance being made for impairment.

The loss allowance for trade receivables is recognised using the simplified approach for lifetime expected credit losses.
Under AASB 9 Financial instruments the department uses a provision matrix to assess the historical trend of its receivables
to calculate loss rates adjusted for forward-looking information. Historical rates are calculated using credit losses
experienced during the past 10 years preceding 30 June 2021, adjusted by the unemployment rate, which is determined to
be the most relevant forward-looking indicator for the department. The calculated lifetime expected credit loss allowance
has been applied to trade receivables. No additional loss allowance has been recognised in the current financial year based

on materiality.

All known bad debts were written off as at 30 June each year.

The department's annual and long service leave receivables relate to the Queensland Government's Annual Leave and Long

Service Leave Central Schemes which are administered by QSuper on behalf of the state. Refer to Note 19.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'000
12 PREPAYMENTS
Current
Insurance 3,868 313
New Generation Rollingstock accessibility works * 60,519 12,743
Pilotage 2,030 2,030
Prepaid salaries 5,582
Queensland Rail transport services contract 17,500 -
Software and data agreements 14,690 11,339
Other 3,446 2,045
Total 107,635 28,470
Non-current
Insurance 5,020 -
New Generation Rollingstock accessibility works * 175,648 168,503
Software and data agreements 743 2,642
Other 348 119
Total 181,759 171,264

* Milestone payments on rectification works for New Generation Rollingstock train sets made in accordance with the variation deed entered
into with the vendor. Residual payments have been recognised as a provision. Refer to Note 18.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software Software Software Other Total
purchased internally work in
generated* progress
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
S'0oo00 S'0o00 S'0oo00 S'000 S'0oo00
Gross value 26,254 436,779 35,935 4,350 503,318
Less: Accumulated amortisation (16,407) (260,135) - (4) (276,546)
9,847 176,644 35,935 4,346 226,772
Reconciliation
Opening balance 12,039 36,662 23,290 4,207 76,198
Acquisitions (including upgrades) - - 21,963 - 21,963
Transfers between classes - 4,473 (4,473) - -
Transfers from/(to) property, plant and
equipment - 157,170 (4,495) 139 152,814
Projects written off - - (350) - (350)
Amortisation (2,192) (21,661) - - (23,853)
Closing balance 9,847 176,644 35,935 4,346 226,772
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
$'o00 $'000 $'o00 $'000 $'o00
Gross value 26,254 279,152 23,290 4,211 332,907
Less: Accumulated amortisation (14,215) (242,490) - ()] (256,709)
12,039 36,662 23,290 4,207 76,198
Reconciliation
Opening balance 5,850 43,616 21,629 4,207 75,302
Acquisitions (including upgrades) - - 18,834 - 18,834
Transfers between classes 7,870 2,178 (10,048) - -
Transfers from/(to) property, plant and
equipment 88 939 (3,075) - (2,048)
Projects written off - - (4,050) - (4,050)
Amortisation (1,769) (10,071) - - (11,840)
Closing balance 12,039 36,662 23,290 4,207 76,198

* The department holds significant internally generated software assets as follows:

® Portfolio, Program, Project and Contract Management software that has a carrying amount of $16.710m (2020: $20.888m) and a
remaining amortisation period of 4 years.

* New Queensland Drivers Licence software that has a carrying amount of $7.654m (2020: $5.066m) and a remaining amortisation
period of 6 years.

o Smart Ticketing system that has a carrying amount of $141.217m (2020: nil) and a remaining amortisation period of 6 years.

Accounting policy

Intangible assets with a cost equal to or greaterthan $100,000 are recognised in the financial statements. Items with a lesser
cost are expensed.

Expenditure on research activities relating to internally-generated intangible assets is recognised as an expense in the period
in which itis incurred. Any training costs are expensed as incurred.

The department’s intangible assets are not revalued as there is no active market for any of these assets. Such assets are
recognised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

For each class of intangible asset, the following amortisation rates are used:

Class Amortisation method Average useful life
Intangibles — purchased Straight-line 11
Intangibles — internally generated Straight-line 15
Intangibles — work in progress Not amortised -
Intangibles — other Not amortised Indefinite life

The estimation of useful life and the resulting amortisation rates applied are based on a number of factors including expected
usage, obsolescence, past experience and the department's planned replacement program. These are reviewed on an annual
basis.

Annual Report 2020-21
Department of Transport and Main Roads



0
8
=
]
£
9]
g
]
8
(%]
S
o
=
=
i

*qE7 04 aunjonuisesyul 1Yo pue oI IT$ SaINIINIIS ‘qz9z 614 SPROI JO SISISUOD BINJONIISEUU] 4

77905 79€76 ?ouejeq Suiso))
(£96°/1) - uoljerdaidag
(691°79) (ele an) SJU3WaIIap uollen|eAsl 19N
(98%7°9) - anjeA Jiej mojaq Je salued piiy) 03 papinoid s}assy
(896°€T) (z9) sjesodsiq
661 186 S3SSB|D UdIMI_( SJajsuel]
- (89) EEMINES
JUSWUIDA0G PUR|SUBANY 1910 0] SIajsuel]
(2h) (1A T 19A3] 0] € |9A9] WOJJ Jajsuel|
290‘€E /G176 € 193] 01 T |9A3] WOJJ JdjSuel]
- 1 suol}isinboy
588799 %7/0‘zt aouejeq SujuadQ
000,$ 000,$
1z0T 1zoe
sSupiing pueq

(A>110d Sununoae Suimoyjoy ayj 03 13j3.) syndul 3)geAIdSqoun wWolj paALIdPp Ajjeljueisqns anjeA liej — € |]9A3) Se palyIsse)d S}asse Sulpjing pue pue) 10§ UOIJRI]IIU0II dNJeA Jje]

gz0‘zgS‘. 686°0€1‘g #€6‘901‘t9 €zg‘6ber't 699061 €1l‘g €€/h9/ Llr‘0S2*S ajuejeq Suiso))
(E€0‘780°T) E (7£0‘156) (095°0%) (oot‘t) E (662°19) - uoneaidag
L66°‘ghrl‘ - Livilgie Yrze6r - (343 (8o€‘te) 10€7195 (SJuBWaIIIP)/SIUBWDIIU] UOIIEN|RASI BN
(roz‘hz) - - - - - (198) (oS€‘€e) 9]eS 10J P|aY Se paljISsSe|dal S19ssy
(9o¥€r) - (126Y) - - - (98%7¢9) - anjeA Jlej mojaq Je saied p.iy) 0} papiAoid S1assy
(649°S2) - (Loz‘?) - (LSt - (660°12) (978) sjesodsiq
(7rg¢esr) (t90°751) - - 98€‘T - - (6€1) sa]qi3ueul (03)/wol) siajsuel]
- (€89°481°1) z€0‘SETT Y69l (768°01) - g08‘ct z6/l1 S9SSB|D USIM]S( SIajsuel]
(611°1) - - - - - - (611°7) EERIES
JUWUIBA0D PUBR|SUANY) 13Y}0 0} SIajsuel]
2z0‘S G/6‘€ - - - - - Y70 9N|BA 1B} MO]|3q JB PAAIDIAI S}9SSY
hSgizzeE 116‘1€TE - - 7/61€ oz 18 898‘8S (sopesddn Suipn)aul) suoisinboy
Lo¥‘gog 69 VAN %A /89°GY7/‘QS 61011 ozg‘ole 0S€‘g 988158 £29259‘Y aouejeq SujuadQ
uojjel)PU0IRY
820°z8SY. 686°0€1‘9 ¥€6‘901‘t9 €zg6zr't 6599°061 €1l‘g €€l9l Llr‘092*S

(€gr°L6¥°T2) - (zoo‘9¥9‘02) (69z*7701) (890°zlY) - (rv7g‘vL2) - uolleldaidap pajenwnidy :ssa7
112‘6,0°96 686019 9€6°c5/4g z60‘7E€zT lzl‘299 €1/‘g 1/5‘6€0‘T /L/1°052‘S anjeA ssoio

000,$ 000,$ 000,$ 000,$ 000,$ 000,$ 000,$ 000,$

1z02T 1202 1z02T 1202 1z02T 1202 1z0T 1202

juawdinba
ssaiSo.d pue juawdinba 1eanynd pue
1e301 upIoMm x2In)dNIISeYU| jue)d jofey pue jueld asejusy sSuipjing pueq

INIWJIND3 ANV INV1d ‘AL¥3dO¥d ¢

(PaNUIIU0D) TZ—0T0T SIUBWIIL]S |BIDUBUI) Y} 0} SAION
Spboy uiply pub jiodsup.j Jo juawiibdag

Department of Transport and Main Roads

Annual Report 2020-21

140



%)
g
=
9]
£
9]
g
©
3
(%]
=
o
=
IS
=
i

*q79€°0¢ 84n1onJiseljul 19Y10 pue 890 z1$ $aININIIS ‘GETE 9§ SPROU JO SISISUOD BINIINIISBIU| yyx

*sasse)d (qEY0°0$) ainjdniisesjul pue

‘(q¥7ot°1$) Juswdinba pue jue|d Jofew ‘(qzro-0$) Juswdinba pue jueld (q761°04) sSuipjing 8y} 01 ‘6501 gSyy 10j 9d0dS JO N0 SB PASSASSE U3 dARY UYdIYM ‘S19SSe 320158ul|j0y uoijeIauan maN ayl Sujjedole pue ‘sdiysiauled
91eALId 211qng ST 910N MU ay3 0} S}9SSE SjudWaSuBLIE UOISSIIU0D 3IIAIRS (752 0$) 1By 1ySI71580D) PJoD puk (q911°1$) ssedAg equoomoo] ay} SullIdjSuRI) PAAJOAUI SIY] "PJepUB)S SUIJUN0JIE MBU BU3} JO Sjudawalinbal
ay3 03 usie yaiym sasse)d ajqedijdde ay) 03 S}asse 9say) Sulliaysuel) Aq pajeisal usaq Sey SSe|d s}asse asea) palodal Ajsnoiaaid syl ‘si0juDI9 :SJUaWIbUDLIY UOISS3IU0) 3IIAIaS 6501 gSYY JO uoirdope ay) SUIMO]|04 x

*$10.443 pub Sajpwiisy buunoady u sabuvy?) ‘sajdfjod buuNo2y gOT gSYY YHIM 2IUBPIOIIE U] PaJRISal U9 ] dARY SIUBWIIE]S |RIdUBUY TZ0Z Y] "A]9AI30adsal w6 T¢ pue wg'Z$ Aq pale)sIano alam s|esodsip pue sjuawaidul
uoljenieAal 3au a)iym ‘AjpA10adsal WEES 0§ pue w9t Aq pajeIsiano aiam sadueleq Suluado Suipjing pue pueq ‘sjesodsip jo Suissadoid Ajawiiun 03 anp 0z0z Ul PaIRISISA0 1M SI9SSE Sulpjing pue pue) s juswiedap ay]

988794 Y7/o‘zt aJuejeq Su1so))
(6%75‘02) - uonjeldaidaq
691‘g lez SJUSWaIdU| UOIIeN|eAS) JBN
- (99) 9]es 10) p|ay Se paljIsse|dal S}assy
(997¢2) - anjeA Jiej mojaq e saiyed p.iyi 0} papiaold S19ssy
€€1'09 - S9SSB|D UdIMID( SJajsuel]
(4444 ©
JUS WUJBA0D PUBISUANY Y10 (01)/WOly SIdjsuel|
0zg‘c - € 19A3] 0} T |9A3] WOJY JajSuel]
9SEY1S 71611 aouejeq SujuadQ
000,$ 000,$
ozoz ozoz
sSuiping pueq
(Aanod Sunipunodoe Suimoi)oj ay) 03 Jaja.) syndul d)qeasasqoun wouy paALap Ajjerjuelsqns anjea Jiej — € |aA3) se paljisse)d s}asse Sulp)ing pue puej 10j UOIJeIIdU0Id aN|eA Jley
LoY‘gog‘69 LhghEehy 189°Sh/‘gS 61701 ozg‘ore 0S€‘g 988°1S8 €29‘299‘y ajuejeq Suiso))
(94#*€ot’t) - (189°926) (11£9€) (961°9€) - (886°€9) - uoljeldaidaq
91.‘€89°‘€E - S09‘6£9°C 7zo‘f - (434 /g€t 188°G1 SJUBWIDIOU| UOIIeN|BADI }BN
(78z‘z) (782‘0) - - - - - - 440 UM S123[01d
(998°8t) - - - - - (EVS‘E) (€r€91) 9]eS 10J Py Se palyISse|dal S19ssy
(sSo‘tr) (15%°2) - - (622) - (99%7¢2) (916) anjeA Jjej mojaq Je salued piiyl 01 papiaoid s1assy
(z09°) - (€89°T) - (11€°T) - (€6€°€) (G12) sjesodsiq
gho‘e - - - gho‘ec - - - $9]qI8uejul Woiy Siajsuel]
- (900°6/£T) S19‘€oc‘e z€919 /€91 - 6/9°/8 60861 S3SSB|D UdIMIa( SJajsuel]
(096°S2) - - - - - (4444 (c9€‘ge) EEIMINES
JUSWUIBA0D PUBISUBNY JaY30 (03)/WOly SIdjsuel|
g9c‘E 16 - - - - - log‘z 9N|BA 11Bj MO)|3( 1B PIAIDIAI SI9SSY
otr‘l€o‘E 609‘1/l‘c 14 18¥‘gle 6€1Y7e - Llz 2685964 (sapesddn Suipnjaul) suonisinboy
005‘tS2‘9 824‘g06°C G98/188°CS 8989548 866°Goe 816/ zo‘rig 6/£6/5Y 9osuejeq Sujuadg
uoljennU0IY
Loh‘gog 69 LyghEey L89°Sh.‘gS #61‘v01‘T ozgore 0SE‘g 988198 €2z9‘299
(690‘€06°02) - (zgl‘gtt‘o7) (196°19) (rzgghrhr) - (¢6%7°€9T) - uolje12a1dap pajejnwinidy :Ssa]
99¥‘t1/‘06 L7g*€ey 69%7°788‘g/ G91°991°T 779699 09€‘g g/€£So1‘T €29‘299‘Y anjeA ssoin
000,$ 000,§ 000,$ 000,§ 000,$ 000,§ 000,$ 000,$
0zoz ozoz 0zoz ozoz ozoz ozoz ozoz ozoz
xx Judwdinba
ssaiSoud SxE pue juawdinba 1ean)nd pue
jeloL upom ainpniiseyu| jueld Jofey puejueld EE1SIE]T] x SSuipjing x puel

(panujuod) INJWINDI ANV LINV1d ‘AL¥3dOdd T

(panuiluol) 1z—0z0T SIUaWIIR]IS |_IDURUIJ 3] 0] SBION

Spboy uiply pubp jiodsup.] Jo juawiipdag

147

Annual Report 2020-21

Department of Transport and Main Roads



Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Accounting policy
Recognition threshold

All items of property, plant and equipment are recognised when the cost exceeds the following thresholds:
e Land $1

¢ Buildings $10,000
e Heritage and cultural $5000
e Plantand equipment $5000
* Major plant and equipment $5000
* Infrastructure $10,000

All other items with a cost less than the above thresholds are expensed.

Acquisition

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical asset acquisitions. Cost is determined as the value
given as consideration plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition, including all other costs incurred in preparing the
assets ready for use.

Where assets are received free of charge from another Queensland Government entity as a result of a machinery-of-
government or other involuntary transfer, the acquisition cost is recognised as the gross carrying amount in the books of the
transferor immediately prior to the transfer, together with any accumulated depreciation.

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new
depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Depreciation

For each class of property, plant and equipment other than infrastructure assets, the following depreciation rates are used:

Class Depreciation method Average useful life
Land Not depreciated Indefinite life
Buildings Straight-line 37
Heritage and cultural Cultural and preservation policies — not depreciated Indefinite life
Plant and equipment Straight-line 10
Major plant and equipment Straight-line 30
Work in progress Not depreciated =

Complex assets consist of significant separately identifiable components with different service lives, which are subject to
regular replacement during the life of the complex asset. When the change in depreciation expense from separately
identifying significant components is material to the class to which the assets relate, the significant components are
separately identified and depreciated. The department's road infrastructure has a componentised structure as shown below.

The following depreciation rates are used for infrastructure sub-components:

Component Sub-component Depreciation method Average useful life
Roads Surfaces Straight-line 23
Pavements Straight-line 55
Formation earthworks Not depreciated Indefinite life
Formation earthworks Straight-line 27
Structures — bridges, tunnels and major 5 Sl -
culverts
Other — mainly marine infrastructure - Straight-line 55

The estimation of useful life and resulting depreciation rates are based on a number of factors including the department’s
past experience, the planned replacement program and expected usage, wear and tear, obsolescence and expected funding
availability to the department. Useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis.

Where the confirmed available funding for the renewal and replacement of the department's road infrastructure assets varies
from one year to the next, the sub-component remaining useful lives are subject to change as a consequence of the altered
works program.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Accounting policy (continued)
Depreciation (continued)

Accordingly an increase in funding allocated to asset renewal or replacement is likely to result in a corresponding
proportionate increase in depreciation expense, and in accumulated depreciation, with a reduction in useful lives.

A reduction in funding is likely to have a similarimpact in reducing depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation, and
increasing expected useful lives.

Formation earthworks initially have an indefinite life irrespective of work carried out on the surface and pavement
components. Earthworks that are expected to be taken out of service or reconstructed are allocated a limited life and are
depreciated in accordance with the requirements of AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Land under roads

The aggregate value of land under roads is measured and disclosed as land until road declarations for each land portion are
confirmed.

Where a road declaration is confirmed, the title is extinguished and ownership reverts to the state represented by the
Department of Resources in accordance with Queensland Government policy.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale consist of those assets that management has determined are available forimmediate sale
in their present condition, and for which their sale is highly probable within the next twelve months.

In accordance with AASB 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, when an asset is classified as
held for sale its value is measured at the lower of the asset’s carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Such assets
are no longer amortised or depreciated upon being classified as held for sale.

Fair value measurement

All assets and liabilities of the department for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements, are

categorised within the following fair value hierarchy, based on the data and assumptions used in the most recent specific

appraisals:

e level1 - represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities

e Level 2 — represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable, either directly orindirectly

e lLevel 3 - represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from unobservable inputs.

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipment assets and capital work in progress are measured at cost in accordance with Queensland Treasury’s
Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.

Land, buildings, heritage and cultural, major plant and equipment and infrastructure assets are measured and reported at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of valuation, less any subsequent relevant accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment.

The cost of items acquired during the financial year materially represent their fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Heritage and cultural assets are independently valued on an annual basis. Road infrastructure assets are valued on an
annual basis by suitably qualified departmental officers and external experts. Land, buildings, major plant and equipment
and other infrastructure assets are assessed by qualified valuers at least once every five years with appropriate indices
being applied in the intervening years.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the
appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an
expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds the balance, if
any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that class.

For assets revalued using a cost valuation approach accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the difference between
the gross amount and carrying amount.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Accounting policy (continued)
Valuation of property, plant and equipment (continued)

For assets revalued using a market or income based valuation approach accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the
gross amount of the asset prior to restating for the revaluation.

Land

The department’s land was revalued based on specific appraisal by external valuers and the department's Strategic
Property Management unit as at September 2020. The fair value of land was based on recent comparable sales of similar
land. Factors such as land restrictions, availability of market information and comparable sales were also taken into
consideration during this specific appraisal.

In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, the department's land assets are generally categorised as level 2.

Land subject to restrictions due to its size or use, and or ability to be sold, such as land located in areas where there is not
an active market, has been classified as level 3.

Buildings

The department's buildings were last revalued based on specific appraisal by various external valuers and registered
valuers from the department's Strategic Property Management unit effective as at September 2020. The fair value of
building assets was based on recent comparable sales. Factors such as current building use, availability of market
information and building condition were also taken into consideration during this specific appraisal.

The department's building assets are categorised as a combination of level 2 and level 3 in accordance with AASB 13 Fair
Value Measurement. Significant buildings not used for residential purposes without an active market have been classified
as level 3.

Heritage and cultural

The department’s heritage collection and artwork were revalued based on specific appraisal by an external valuer during the
2020-21 financial year. The fair value of the artwork was based on sales data on similar artwork by the respective artists.
Factors such as condition, size and medium of artwork were also taken into consideration during this specific appraisal.

As there is no active market for the department's heritage assets, their fair value is determined by estimating the cost to
reproduce the items with the features and materials of the original items, with adjustments made to take into account the
items' heritage restrictions and characteristics.

In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, heritage and cultural assets are categorised as level 3.

Major plant and equipment

The department's major plant and equipment was last revalued based on specific appraisal by an external valuer as at
September 2020.

The valuation method used is current replacement cost as there is no active market existing for such assets. The approach
consists of reviewing recent local and international rolling stock contracts adjusted for the relevant producer price index
and historical exchange rates.

Significant judgement is also used to assess the remaining service potential of the assets, including current condition.

In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, major plant and equipment assets are categorised as level 3.

Infrastructure

A full management valuation of the road infrastructure network asset as at 30 June 2021 was completed by suitably
qualified and experienced departmental engineers and staff. The valuation methodology adopted to calculate fair value is
based on the cost to acquire the service potential embodied in an asset and adjusted to reflect the asset’s present
condition, functionality, technological and economic obsolescence. This is the estimated cost to replace an asset with an
appropriate modern equivalent using current construction materials and standards, adjusted for changes in utility and
service level.

The valuation involves a resource-based assessment to develop unit rates that provide a sound representation of the cost of
replacing the service potential embodied in the asset. This process utilises the following key assumptions and judgements:

e Stereotypical roads — The road network is broken down into stereotypical roads as a way of standardising the
complexities involved in road construction.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Accounting policy (continued)
Valuation of property, plant and equipment (continued)

Infrastructure (continued)

The department estimates 13 different road stereotypes based on the road segments' complexity in relation to the
number and width of traffic lanes, standard of construction (based on date), number of carriageways, age of
construction, and location (rural or urban). Stereotypes range from unformed roads through to major motorways and
busways and are further defined by complex category and sub-category mapping (for example, terrain — rolling, level,
mountainous).

* Project work breakdown structure (WBS) — Each stereotype is supported by a complex breakdown of WBS schedules
representing the types of projects that would be undertaken to replace and renew relevant asset components.
As WBS represent a standardised road construction, assumptions are made on the area used for each WBS. The areas
have been determined by a firm of consultant engineers and are reviewed and updated as necessary. There is a small
number of derived WBS schedules that are based on other similar WBS instead of their own schedule of work activities.

e Unit rates — The unit rates applied to stereotypical roads are priced by an expert estimating firm using current market
rates of inputs such as raw materials, plant and labour to underpin the detailed WBS schedules representing the way in
which certain stereotypical roads would be replaced. Inputs are sourced directly from suppliers and subcontractors
competing in the marketplace in Queensland.

The unit rates, including underlying assumptions and specific details contained in the stereotypes, are ratified annually
by an expert panel consisting of engineers and staff from a range of disciplines across the department in conjunction
with local government and industry.

Remaining useful lives are estimated using past experience as detailed in the department's road condition models and in
the extensive rule set that is applied to determine when an appropriate works intervention will occur. Consideration is also
given to planned replacement programs as a result of observation of road use deterioration and environmental factors such
as:

e Traffic volume

® Rutting

e Cracking

® Roughness

o Safety

e Number of years in use.

As there is no active market for the department's infrastructure assets, the valuation approach used is current replacement
cost. This is the assets’ measurement of their highest and best use. While the unit rates database consists of market
derived component costs which includes raw materials and other costs of construction (level 2 inputs), there are also
significant level 3 unobservable inputs such as useful life and asset condition which require extensive professional
judgement. Differences in the assessment of these level 3 inputs would not result in material changes in the reported fair
value.

The department determines the current replacement cost of structures on the infrastructure network through an approach
that takes into consideration an expert review of actual construction costs and resource rates to replace existing bridges,
tunnels and major culverts. This is achieved by referencing past works of similar construction method and moderating for
changes in market movements through a combination of market indexation and referencing of recent actual construction
costs and resource rates.

Unit rates for the current replacement cost of bridges and tunnels are derived from a combination of the current and prior
four years' project costs and other departmental system reports, and market indexation, moderated by internal engineering
experts. Unit rates for the current replacement cost of major culverts are derived from resource rates and use of the Expert
Estimation tool, moderated by internal engineering experts. These unit rates are then certified by the department's Deputy
Chief Engineer (Structures).

The department's other infrastructure was revalued as at September 2020 based on specific appraisal by an external valuer
using a costing database similar to the unit rates process used for road infrastructure.

As with the department’s road infrastructure assets, there is no active market for other infrastructure. Therefore current
replacement cost is the measurement of the other infrastructure assets highest and best use.

In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, the department's infrastructure assets are categorised as level 3.

As the department is a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment of Assets
is unlikely to arise, since property, plant and equipment is carried at fair value or an amount that approximates fair value in
rare circumstances.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

15  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (continued)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS UNDER AASB 1059 (continued)
Accounting policy

Service concession assets are measured at current replacement cost on initial recognition or reclassification, and are
subsequently measured at fair value determined using current replacement cost.

Assets under service concession arrangements consisting of major plant and equipment, plant and equipment, buildings
and infrastructure asset classes have been revalued by suitably qualified and experienced departmental engineers and
various external valuers.

Major plant and equipment, plant and equipment, buildings and infrastructure asset measurement and valuation
methodologies are disclosed in Note 14.

The current replacement cost valuation of infrastructure assets undertaken by external valuers takes into consideration the
cost of a similar standard asset providing the same functionality in the same location. The new asset is assumed to be
constructed to current standards however with no additional functionality.

In accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, the department's service concession assets are categorised as level 3.

Straight-line depreciation has been applied to all depreciable asset components and the following depreciation rates are
applied in each arrangement:

Component Service concession arrangement Average useful life
Buildings Gold Coast Light Rail = G:link 29
Plant and equipment Gold Coast Light Rail — G:link 29
Major plant and equipment Gold Coast Light Rail = G:link 33
Infrastructure Gold Coast Light Rail = G:link 77
Toowoomba Bypass * 82
Airportlink M7 * 43
Gateway Motorway * 78
Logan Motorway * 67
Port Drive * 42
Brisbane Airport Rail Link 46

* Arrangements containing formation earthworks asset components which are non-depreciable.

Gold Coast Light Rail - G:link

In May 2011 the department entered into a contractual arrangement with GoldLinQ Consortium to finance, design, build,
operate and maintain a 13 kilometre light rail system linking key activity centres from Griffith University (Gold Coast
Campus) and the Gold Coast University Hospital to Broadbeach via Southport. On 20 July 2014 construction was completed
and the G:link commenced operations.

On 28 April 2016 the department entered into a contractual arrangement with GoldLinQ for stage two of the Gold Coast Light
Rail system. Stage two connects the existing light rail system at Southport to heavy rail at the Helensvale station. The 7.3km
route runs from Helensvale heavy rail station on the Gold Coast Line, adjacent to the Smith Street Motorway to connect with
stage one at the Gold Coast University Hospital light rail station. Stage two of the system commenced operations on 18
December 2017.

During the 15 year operations period, at an implicit rate of 9.23%, GoldLinQ is paid monthly performance based payments
for operations, maintenance and repayment of the debt finance used to construct the light rail system. The state receives
fare-box and advertising revenue generated by the light rail system.

The department has begun preparation for Stage three of the Gold Coast Light Rail system to extend the light rail from
Broadbeach South Station to Burleigh Heads. The 6.7km extension south of the existing tram network will link Helensvale to
Burleigh Heads and provide eight additional stations.

Planning has begun for the Gold Coast Light Rail Stage four, a 13km extension south of the light rail Stage three, linking
Burleigh Heads to Coolangatta via the Gold Coast Airport.

At the expiry of the concession period the department will retain ownership of the light rail system.
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Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

Note 2021 2020
$'oo0 $'o00

15  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (continued)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS UNDER AASB 1059 (continued)
Gold Coast Light Rail — G:link (continued)
The estimated future cash flows excluding GST are detailed below:
Estimated cash flows
Inflows:
Not later than one year 21,996 30,933
Later than one year but not later than five years 94,230 149,924
Later than five years but not later than ten years 128,290 192,797
Outflows:
Not later than one year (111,048) (108,350)
Later than one year but not later than five years (460,676) (458,381)
Later than five years but not later than ten years (384,376) (506,877)
Estimated net cash flow (711,584) (699,954)
Operating statement impact
Revenue
Advertising 271 342
Fare revenue 3 10,890 15,041
Expenses
Depreciation 22,089 27,361
Interest 9 26,193 27,953
Service expenses 60,810 57,549
Net impact on operating result (97,931) (97,480)

Toowoomba Bypass

In August 2015 the department entered into a contractual arrangement with Nexus Infrastructure Consortium to finance,
design, build, operate and maintain a range crossing connecting the Warrego Highway at Helidon Spa in the east with the
Gore Highway at Athol in the west, via Charlton. The bypass opened to traffic in September 2019 and toll collection
commenced in December 2019, with Transurban Queensland contracted to provide the tolling collection service on behalf of
the department.

The department will make ongoing quarterly service payments over the 25 year operation and maintenance period at an
implicit interest rate of 5.32%, which includes repayment of the debt finance used to construct the bypass. Maintenance
payments are expensed during the relevant year.

At the expiry of the concession period the department will retain ownership of the road infrastructure.
The estimated future cash flows excluding GST are detailed below:

Estimated cash flows

Inflows:

Not later than one year 17,571 12,617
Later than one year but not later than five years 75,656 55,425
Later than five years but not later than ten years 108,246 82,403
Later than ten years 395,529 358,925
Outflows:

Not later than one year 47,297) (44,555)
Later than one year but not later than five years (198,206) (188,172)
Later than five years but not later than ten years (289,753) (269,361)
Later than ten years (807,120) (839,854)
Estimated net cash flow (745,374) (832,572)

Annual Report 2020-21 W/ 9
Department of Transport and Main Roads =



Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020—21 (continued)

Note 2021 2020
$'000 $'o00

15  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (continued)
SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS UNDER AASB 1059 (continued)
Toowoomba Bypass (continued)
Operating statement impact
Revenue
Interest rate adjustment 6,931 -
Refinancing gain - 9,456
Toll revenue 3 18,748 9,302
Expenses
Depreciation 14,721 12,250
Interest 9 22,176 22,676
Service expenses 24,267 14,189
Tolling operations 1,674 864
Net impact on operating result (37,159) (31,221)

Airportlink M7

In 2008 the state entered into a 45 year service concession arrangement with BrisConnections to design, construct and
maintain Airportlink, a 6.7km toll road, connecting the Clem 7 Tunnel, Inner City Bypass and local road network at Bowen
Hills, to the northern arterials of Gympie Road and Stafford Road at Kedron, Sandgate Road and the East West Arterial
leading to the airport. In April 2016 Transurban Queensland assumed responsibility for Airportlink and now operates
Airportlink under a service concession arrangement.

In return for collecting the tolls, Transurban Queensland must maintain, operate and manage the toll road for the
concession period and also assume the demand and patronage risk.

At the expiry of the concession period, the department will retain ownership of the toll road assets.

Operating statement impact

Revenue

Amortisation of unearned revenue 117,181 117,181
Expenses

Depreciation 83,481 80,426
Net impact on operating result 33,700 36,755

Gateway and Logan Motorways

A Road Franchise Agreement (RFA) was established between the state and Queensland Motorways Limited (QML) in 2011 to
operate, maintain and manage the Gateway and Logan motorways including the Gateway Extension for a period of 40 years.
In 2014, Transurban Queensland acquired QML and now operates the Gateway Motorway and Logan Motorway toll roads
under the RFA with the state.

In return for collecting the tolls, Transurban Queensland must maintain, operate and manage the toll roads for the period of
the franchise and also assume the demand and patronage risk for the franchise period.

At the expiry of the concession period, the department will retain ownership of the toll road assets.

Operating statement impact

Revenue

Amortisation of unearned revenue 105,365 105,365
Expenses

Depreciation 43,200 41,892
Net impact on operating result 62,165 63,473
W bO Annual Report 2020-21
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020—21 (continued)

Note 2021 2020
S'000 S'o00
15  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (continued)

SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS UNDER AASB 1059 (continued)
Port Drive

A Road Franchise Agreement (RFA) was established between the state and Port of Brisbane Pty Ltd in November 2000 to
maintain and manage the Port Drive motorway. In 2010, APH Consortium signed a 99 year lease over the port, which
included an agreement to fund a major upgrade to the motorway.

The Port Drive motorway is not a toll road. The operator obtains indirect benefits of ongoing maintenance of the road
infrastructure through increased capacity and access to the port precinct.

At the expiry of the concession period the department will retain ownership of the motorway assets.

Operating statement impact

Revenue

Amortisation of unearned revenue 474 474
Expenses

Depreciation 604 594
Net impact on operating result (130) (120)

Brisbane Airport Rail Link (Airtrain)

In 1998, the state entered into a 35 year concession arrangement with Airtrain Citylink Limited to design, construct,

maintain and operate the Brisbane Airport Rail Link (BARL), a public passenger rail system connecting the Queensland Rail
City network to the Brisbane Domestic and International Airports. The BARL is currently in the maintain and operate phase of
the agreement after the commencement of operations on 7 May 2001.

In return for collecting passenger fares, Airtrain Citylink Limited must maintain, operate and manage the rail link for the
period of the concession and also assume the demand and patronage risk for the concession period.

At the expiry of the concession period the department will retain ownership of the rail system.

Operating statement impact

Revenue

Amortisation of unearned revenue 9,160 9,160
Expenses

Depreciation 5,675 5,623
Net impact on operating result 3,485 3,537

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS OUTSIDE OF THE SCOPE OF AASB 1059
New Generation Rollingstock (NGR)

In January 2014 the department entered into a contractual arrangement with NGR Project Company Pty Ltd (Bombardier NGR
Consortium) for the design, construction and maintenance of 75 new six-car train sets for south-east Queensland and a new
purpose-built maintenance centre at Wulkuraka in Ipswich, over 32 years at an implicit rate of 12.22%. The arrangement
involves the department paying the consortium a series of availability payments over the concession period.

In June 2016 the maintenance centre was accepted by the department and a lease asset and lease liability was recognised.
All 75 train sets were accepted and recognised by December 2019.

Upon the application of AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors, the NGR public private partnership was

assessed and determined to be out of scope of the accounting standard, as the provider of the assets does not operate or
manage the passenger train services provided by the train sets. Accordingly, the department accounts for the arrangement
as an outsourced service contract with the payment stream representing availability payments and borrowing repayments.

The train sets are recognised as major plant and equipment assets, while the maintenance centre, associated rail
infrastructure and technical equipment are classified as buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment and work in
progress respectively in Note 14.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

Note 2021 2020
$'000 S'000
15  PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS (continued)

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS OUTSIDE OF THE SCOPE OF AASB 1059 (continued)

New Generation Rollingstock (NGR) (continued)

Assets

Buildings 166,022 193,835
Major plant and equipment 1,111,413 1,104,194
Infrastructure 37,394 43,419
Plant and equipment 13,488 11,876
Work in progress 67,581 47,468
Closing balance 1,395,898 1,400,792
Liabilities

Financial liabilities 17 557,974 580,348
Total 557,974 580,348

In March 2019, an amendment deed was signed by NGR Project Company Pty Ltd to modify the trains in accordance with the
Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 (Cth). Modification to the trains is expected to be completed by
2024. Modification works have been completed for three trains during 2021.

Ownership of the train sets and maintenance centre resides with the department during the period of the arrangement.
The estimated future cash flows excluding GST are detailed below:

Estimated cash flows

Inflows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years but not later than ten years
Laterthan ten years

Outflows:

Not later than one year (98,656) (130,479)
Later than one year but not later than five years (666,892) (502,942)
Later than five years but not later than ten years (723,933) (813,850)
Later than ten years (2,385,094) (3,020,451
Estimated net cash flow (3,874,575) (4,467,722)

Operating statement impact

Expenses

Depreciation 14 47,718 45,774
Interest 9 69,418 71,055
Service expenses 45,516 25,231
Net impact on operating result (162,652) (142,060)

16 PAYABLES

Current

Departmental services appropriation payable - 61,290
Grants and subsidies payable 42,890 46,290
Trade creditors 608,343 471,915
Other 35,934 23,358
Total 687,167 602,853
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Department of Transport and Main Roads

Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

16 PAYABLES (continued)

Accounting policy

Trade creditors are recognised on receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase or
contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 28
day terms, with the exception of a range of transport service contracts which have varying settlement terms.

Other payables such as grants and subsidies and property resumptions have varying settlement terms.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
17 BORROWINGS
Current
Lease liabilities 238 274
Financial liabilities — Service concession arrangements 33,417 30,238
New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 3,061 13,737
Total 36,716 44,249
Non-current
Lease liabilities 3,229 3,285
Financial liabilities — Service concession arrangements 660,992 694,408
New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 554,913 566,611
Total 1,219,134 1,264,304
18 PROVISIONS
Current
Property resumptions 148,582 161,065
New Generation Rollingstock rectification works 46,515 67,375
Total 195,097 228,440
Non-current
Property resumptions 151,027 120,605
New Generation Rollingstock rectification works 87,447 133,962
Total 238,474 254,567
Movements in provision for Property resumptions
Current
Opening balance 161,065 130,783
Restatement of provision 7,787 29,500
Additional provision recognised 31,926 14,567
Reduction in provision as a result of payments (41,897) (43,428)
Reclassification from/(to) non-current provision (10,299) 29,643
Closing balance 148,582 161,065
Non-current
Opening balance 120,605 167,162
Restatement of provision (15,850) (23,905)
Additional provision recognised 40,630 18,371
Reduction in provision as a result of payments (4,657) (11,380)
Reclassification (to)/from current provision 10,299 (29,643)
Closing balance 151,027 120,605

Department of Transport and Main Roads

Annual Report 2020-21

15

2
2



Financial statements

Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

18 PROVISIONS (continued)
Provision for property resumptions

The department acquires property through compulsory acquisition in accordance with the Acquisition of Land Act 1967, the
Transport Infrastructure Act 1994 and the Transport Planning and Coordination Act 1994. The department recognises a
provision to account for compensation it expects to pay for all property resumptions, with the exception of hardship
resumptions which are recognised immediately as a payable. The department's advisors determine a value for the
acquisition amount which, with timing of the settlement, is dependent on the outcome of negotiation between both parties.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
Movements in provision for New Generation Rollingstock rectification works
Current
Opening balance 67,375 15,979
Reduction in provision as a result of payments (67,375) (15,979)
Reclassification from/(to) non-current provision 46,515 67,375
Closing balance 46,515 67,375
Non-current
Opening balance 133,962 201,337
Reclassification (to)/from current provision (46,515) (67,375)
Closing balance 87,447 133,962

Provision for New Generation Rollingstock rectification works

The department undertook a review of the New Generation Rollingstock (NGR) train sets’ compliance with the disability
legislation and functional requirements in June 2017 and it was identified that the train sets required rectification works to
be undertaken to ensure compliance with the Disability Standards for Accessible Public Transport 2002 (Cth). In 2018 the
Minister for Transport and Main Roads committed to working with the disability sector to modify the trains. Rectification
works are scheduled to be completed by 2024. This gives rise to a constructive obligation as there is an expectation that the
department will honour this commitment. The department recognises a provision to account for the remainder of the
rectification works it expects to pay for NGR train sets based on the variation deed entered into with the vendor.

Accounting policy

Provisions are recorded when the department has a present obligation, either legal or constructive as a result of a past
event. They are recognised at the amount expected at reporting date for which the obligation will be settled in a future
period. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date to ensure the amounts accurately reflect the best estimate available.

19 ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Current

Annual leave levy payable 19,056 19,553

Long service leave levy payable 4,457 4,902

Salaries and wages outstanding 5,340 46,451

Other 2,378 2,072

Total 31,231 72,978
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

19 ACCRUED EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Accounting policy
Annual leave and long service leave

Under the Queensland Government’s Annual Leave Central Scheme and Long Service Leave Central Scheme, a levy is made
on the department to cover the cost of employees' annual leave and long service leave entitlements. The levies are
expensed in the period in which they are payable. Amounts paid to employees for annual leave and long service leave are
claimed from the schemes quarterly in arrears. These schemes are administered by QSuper on behalf of the Queensland
Government.

No provision for annual leave or long service leave is recognised in these financial statements. The liabilities are held on a
whole-of-government basis and are reported by Queensland Treasury.

Sick leave

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken each reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. This is
expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will be used by
employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised.

As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken.
Superannuation

Post-employment benefits for superannuation are provided through defined contribution (accumulation) plans or the
Queensland Government's QSuper defined benefit plan as determined by the employee's conditions of employment.

Contributions are made to eligible complying superannuation funds based on the rates specified in the relevant enterprise
bargaining agreement or other conditions of employment. Contributions are expensed when they are paid or become
payable following completion of the employee's service each pay period.

The liability for defined benefits is held on a whole-of-government basis and reported in those financial statements
pursuant to AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. The amount of
contributions for defined benefit plan obligations is based upon the rates determined on the advice of the State Actuary.
Contributions are paid by the department at the specified rate following completion of the employee's service each pay
period. The department's obligations are limited to those contributions paid.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'000
20 OTHER LIABILITIES
Current
Advance payments by Queensland Reconstruction Authority * 25,761
Advance payments for land ** 67,524 -
go card deposits held 44,150 42,466
go card stored value — unearned revenue *** 49,416 46,818
Other 4,267 4,402
Total 191,118 93,686

* Advance payments received from Queensland Reconstruction Authority for projects relating to natural disasters.
** Land acquisition payments received from the Australian Rail Track Corporation (ARTC) for the Inland Rail project.

*** Represents unused go card balances which are recognised as revenue as patrons undertake travel.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
Notes to the financial statements 2020-21 (continued)

2021 2020
$'o00 $'0o00
21 INCOME TAX EQUIVALENTS
Income tax equivalent expense
Current tax equivalents 5,840 7,544
Deferred tax equivalent expense/(income) relating to temporary differences 2,090 ©)
Income tax equivalent expense attributable to profit from ordinary activities 7,930 7,541
Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to
prima facie tax payable
Accounting profit before tax 26,437 25,130
Prima facie tax at applicable rate of 30% 7,930 7,539
Adjustments for non-temporary differences and excluded temporary differences:

Other non-deductible expenses - 2
Income tax equivalent expense attributable to profit from ordinary activities 7,930 7,541
Deferred tax equivalent expense/(income) included in income tax
equivalent expense comprises:

Deferred tax assets opening balance 5,942 6,077
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax assets (2,090) (135)
Deferred tax assets at 30 June 3,852 5,942
Proof of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets:

Property, plant and equipment 3,734 5,011

Other items 118 931
Net deferred tax assets at 30 June 3,852 5,942
Reconciliation of current tax (receivable)/payable
Opening balance 473 (2,493)
Net movements (2,959) 2,966
Current tax (receivable)/payable at 30 June (2,486) 473

Accounting policy

The department is a State body as defined under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is generally exempt from
Australian Government taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST).

The RoadTek business unit is subject to the requirements of the National Tax Equivalents Regime (NTER). The liability for
income tax equivalents under NTER is calculated substantially on the same basis as a corporate tax payer. The department
remits its tax equivalents to Queensland Treasury in accordance with NTER arrangements.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities compared to their respective tax bases, in the ordinary course of business.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the tax asset can be used. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are set off on the basis that they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the department has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities.
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Department of Transport and Main Roads
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2021 2020
$'000 $'o00
22 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
Commitments inclusive of non-recoverable GST input tax credits are payable as follows:
Refer to Note 15 for commitments related to service concession arrangements.
Property, plant and equipment commitments *
Not later than one year 575,229 759,715
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,047,635 1,055,828
Later than five years - -
Total 3,622,864 1,815,543
Grants and subsidies commitments
Not later than one year 525,038 459,112
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,123,278 925,766
Later than five years - -
Total 1,648,316 1,384,878
Other commitments **
Not later than one year 3,840,719 3,225,928
Later than one year and not later than five years 2,196,961 4,591,340
Later than five years 3,076,671 3,172,228
Total 9,114,351 10,989,496

* Increase predominantly relates to upgrade programs on the various sections of the Bruce Highway and Pacific Motorway.

** Comparatives have been restated to include Queensland Rail Transport Service Contract arrangement.

23 CONTINGENCIES

Contingent liabilities

At balance date the department has been named as defendant in six cases and 8o other claims not yet subject to court
action. The department's legal advisers and management believe it would be misleading to estimate the final amounts
payable for litigation filed in the courts.

The Queensland Government Insurance Fund limits the department's liability in a majority of these cases to $10,000.

24 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY

Transmax Pty Ltd

Transmax Pty Ltd (Transmax) was established to enhance and market the STREAMS traffic management system. STREAMS is
a multifunctional intelligent transport system that provides freeway, traffic signal and incident management as well as
driver and passenger information capabilities.

The department exercises control over Transmax through 100 percent ownership of all its issued shares. This investment is
recognised at cost and is valued at $5.601m (2020: $5.601m). The amount of the investment and transactions relating to
Transmax are not material to these financial statements, and the department has elected not to prepare consolidated
financial statements in accordance with AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements.

The department engaged Transmax for the provision of software licencing, technical support and related professional
services to the value of $16.700m (2020: $14.700m) GST inclusive during the financial year.

Transmax prepares separate financial statements which are audited by the Queensland Audit Office and are tabled in
parliament in accordance with government policy.
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Note 2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of financial position when the department
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

CATEGORISATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Financial assets

Cash 344,348 338,495
Financial assets at amortised cost:

Receivables 11 226,069 126,198
Total 570,417 464,693

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:

Payables 16 687,167 602,853
Lease liabilities 17 3,467 3,559
Service concession arrangements 17 694,409 724,646
New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 17 557,974 580,348
Total 1,943,017 1,911,406

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The department's activities have the potential to expose it to a variety of financial risks such as interest rate risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk. Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to government and departmental policy
and seeks to minimise possible adverse effects on the financial performance of the department.

All financial risk is managed by each division under policy established by the Finance and Procurement Branch.

CREDIT RISK EXPOSURE

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the department may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a
financial instrument failing to discharge their obligation.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provision forimpairment less any collateral held as security, such as
deposits.

The department manages credit risk through the use of a credit management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the
exposure to credit default by ensuring the department invests in secure assets and monitors all funds owed. Exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Refer to Note 11 for receivables credit risk ageing analysis.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The department manages liquidity risk through regular fortnightly appropriation payments from the Consolidated Fund. This
strategy reduces the exposure to liquidity risk by ensuring the department has sufficient funds available to meet its
obligations when they fall due.
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The following maturity analysis measures the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the department:

Payable in

Financial liabilities Note <1year 1-5 years 5 years Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2021
Payables 16 687,167 - - 687,167
Lease liabilities 326 709 3,701 4,736
Service concession arrangements 79,296 322,831 703,210 1,105,337
New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 71,099 284,545 1,419,809 1,775,453
Total 837,888 608,085 2,126,720 3,572,693
2020
Payables 16 602,853 602,853
Lease liabilities 364 704 3,854 4,922
Service concession arrangements 78,607 320,628 784,709 1,183,944
New Generation Rollingstock arrangement 83,198 290,226 1,493,455 1,866,879
Total 765,022 611,558 2,282,018 3,658,598

MARKET RISK

The department does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to commodity price changes.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The department is not exposed to interest rate sensitivity.

FAIR VALUE

The department does not recognise any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value. The fair value of trade
receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any allowance for
impairment.

26 SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTERED ITEMS

The department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the government. In doing so, it has
responsibility and is accountable for administering related transactions and balances but does not have the discretion to
deploy these resources for the achievement of the department’s objectives.

The department also performs certain agency transactions which are not recognised in the department's financial
statements. In 2021 these include Compulsory Third Party (CTP) insurance premiums collected on behalf of licensed CTP
insurers totalling $1.1b (2020: $1.1b). Levies were also collected on behalf of the Motor Accident Insurance Commission
totalling $128m (2020: $128m), the National Injury Insurance Scheme Queensland totalling $434m (2020: $427m), and
stamp duty was collected on behalf of the Office of State Revenue totalling $662m (2020: $534m). Registration fees
collected on behalf of the National Heavy Vehicle Regulator totalled $44m (2020: $42m).

The majority of administered revenue is recognised upon receipt, with the exception of Penalty Infringement Notices and
Traffic Offence Notices for which an administered receivable is recognised at 30 June. If the notice is not paid within 56
days, the debt is transferred to Queensland Treasury.
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26 SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTERED ITEMS (continued)

The following balances are administered by the department on behalf of the state and relate directly to the Transport Safety
and Regulation departmental service area, with the exception of land assets which relate to the Transport Infrastructure

Management Delivery departmental service area.

2021 2020
$'o00 $'o00
Administered income
Appropriation revenue 66,244 -
Grants and other contributions 2,935 1,296
User charges, fees and fines * 2,858,172 2,712,779
Other 9,377 8,894
Total income 2,936,728 2,722,969
Administered expenses
Grants and subsidies 66,348 6,964
Impairment losses on trade receivables 8 9
Transfers of administered revenue to government 2,867,542 2,721,630
Other - 570
Total expenses 2,933,898 2,729,173
OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 2,830 (6,204)
* User charges, fees and fines includes:
Fines and forfeiture 191,327 166,720
Motor vehicle registration 2,020,279 1,918,870
Transport and traffic fees 487,381 465,639
Other registration 82,063 83,797
Other regulatory fees 76,095 76,677
Other 1,027 1,076
Total 2,858,172 2,712,779
Administered assets
Current
Cash 22,337 36,592
Receivables 66,005 41,926
Total current assets 88,342 78,518
Non-current
Land ** 110,692 168,281
Total non-current assets 110,692 168,281
Total assets 199,034 246,799
Administered liabilities
Current
Payables 81,921 57,491
Unearned revenue 6,187 5,793
Total liabilities 88,108 63,284
NET ADMINISTERED ASSETS 110,926 183,515
Administered equity
Contributed equity 10,414 25,515
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) (78,221) (81,050)
Asset revaluation surplus 178,733 239,050
TOTAL ADMINISTERED EQUITY 110,926 183,515

** The department's administered land assets were overstated by $104m in 2020 due to untimely processing of additions
and disposals. The 2021 financial statements administered items note has been restated in accordance with AASB 108

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.
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2021 2020
$'000 $'000
27 ADMINISTERED APPROPRIATIONS
Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to administered income
Budgeted administered appropriation revenue 41,621
Lapsed administered appropriation (750)
Total administered revenue 40,871
Less: Opening balance of administered revenue receivable -
Plus: Closing balance of administered revenue receivable 25,373
Administered income recognised in Note 26 66,244 -
Reconciliation of payments from Consolidated Fund to administered equity adjustment
Budgeted administered equity adjustment appropriation 547,318 40,000
Transfers from other headings (304,026) 5,000
Lapsed administered equity adjustment (105,000) -
Total administered equity adjustment receipts 138,292 45,000
Plus: Opening balance of administered equity adjustment payable = -
Less: Closing balance of administered equity adjustment payable 1,000
Administered equity adjustment recognised in contributed equity 137,292 45,000

28 BUDGETARY REPORTING

As the 2020-21 Service Delivery Statements do not include a budgeted balance sheet or budgeted statement of cash flows,
no disclosure of budget to actual variances is required for these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Original Actual Variance
budget result
2021 2021 2021
$'o00 $'o00 $'o00
Income
Appropriation revenue 5,734,294 5,713,024 (21,270)
User charges and fees 608,261 615,524 7,263
Grants and other contributions 162,414 187,184 24,770
Service concession arrangements revenue 156,619 232,180 75,561
Other revenue 16,002 33,422 17,420
Total revenue 6,677,590 6,781,334 103,744
Gains on disposal of assets 3,488 4,073 585
Total income 6,681,078 6,785,407 104,329
Expenses
Employee expenses 586,995 603,083 16,088
Supplies and services 4,053,281 4,003,392 (49,889)
Grants and subsidies 657,540 695,471 37,931
Finance and borrowing costs 117,943 117,878 (65)
Impairment losses 1,670 2,375 705
Depreciation and amortisation 1,214,881 1,277,978 63,097
Other expenses 24,282 40,094 15,812
Total expenses 6,656,592 6,740,271 83,679
Operating result before income tax equivalent expense 24,486 45,136 20,650
Income tax equivalent expense 6,054 7,930 1,876
OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR 18,432 37,206 18,774
Items not reclassified to operating result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus - 2,953,688 2,953,688
Total other comprehensive income - 2,953,688 2,953,688
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 18,432 2,990,894 2,972,462
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28 BUDGETARY REPORTING (continued)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Explanation of major variances

Grants and other contributions

Variance of $24.770m primarily reflects higher than budgeted reimbursements by the Queensland Reconstruction Authority

of $19.992m relating to a timing issue.

Service concession arrangements revenue

Variance of $75.561m reflects the recognition of increased foregone revenue due to finalised valuations of service

concession assets.

Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Variance of $2.954b mainly consists of a revaluation increment in infrastructure assets as a result of the annual revaluation
for2020-21. A budget was not allocated due to the unavailability of reliable measures for future movement in replacement

costs of existing and new infrastructure assets.

SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTERED ITEMS Original Actual Variance
budget result
2021 2021 2021
$'o00 $'o00 $'o00
Administered income
Administered appropriation 71,899 66,244 (5,655)
Grants and other contributions - 2,935 2,935
User charges, fees and fines 2,799,646 2,858,172 58,526
Other 8,535 9,377 842
Totalincome 2,880,080 2,936,728 56,648
Administered expenses
Grants and subsidies 71,899 66,348 (5,551)
Impairment losses on trade receivables - 8 8
Transfers of administered revenue to government 2,808,181 2,867,542 59,361
Total expenses 2,880,080 2,933,898 53,818
OPERATING RESULT FOR THE YEAR - 2,830 2,830
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MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE OF THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT AND MAIN ROADS
for the year ended 30 June 2021

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to section 62(1) of the Financial Accountability Act
2009 (the Act), section 38 of the Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 and other prescribed requirements.
In accordance with section 62(1)(b) of the Act we certify that in our opinion:

a) the prescribed requirements for establishing and keeping the accounts have been complied with in all material
respects; and

b) the financial statements have been drawn up to present a true and fair view, in accordance with prescribed accounting
standards, of the transactions of the Department of Transport and Main Roads for the financial year ended 30 June
2021 and of the financial position of the department at the end of that year.

The Director-General, as the Accountable Officer of the Department, acknowledges responsibility under sections 7 and 11 of
Financial and Performance Management Standard 2019 for the establishment and maintenance, in all material respects, of
an appropriate and effective system of internal controls and risk management processes with respect to financial reporting
throughout the reporting period.

N :’7&# Ned Sialeh,

Nick Shaw FCPA Neil Scales OBE
Chief Finance Officer Director-General
19 August 2021 19 August 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Accountable Officer of the Department of Transport and Main Roads

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of the Department of Transport and Main
Roads.

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the department's financial position as at 30 June 2021, and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b)  complies with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position and statement of assets
and liabilities by major departmental service as at 30 June 2021, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and
statement of comprehensive income by major departmental service for the year then ended,
notes to the financial statements including summaries of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, and the management certificate.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

| am independent of the department in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most

significance in my audit of the financial report for the current period. | addressed these
matters in the context of my audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming my
opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of infrastructure assets ($61.107 billion) and estimating depreciation expense
($951.074 million)

Refer to note 14 in the financial report

Key audit matter ‘ How my audit addressed the key audit matter

The fair value measurement of infrastructure assets is | My procedures included, but were not limited to:

based on current replacement cost (cost approach). e assessing the reasonableness of the methods and
The valuations are dependent on certain key accounting principles used in the cost approach
assumptions that require significant management and depreciation expense estimates

judgement including for the following:
¢ evaluating the qualifications, competence,

» Componentising .the assets into.the significant capability and objectivity of the internal subject
parts that have different useful lives. matter experts involved in developing and
 Classifying assets into categories that have similar approving internally generated unit rates
replacement costs. e examining a sample of the input data used in the
 Estimating the gross replacement cost for each unit pricing model for relevance, completeness
combination of asset component and category to and accuracy
develop unit rates for the modern equivalent e examining a sample of unit rates and evaluating
asset. the reasonableness of key assumptions and
 Estimating the remaining useful life of each asset. relevance, completeness, and accuracy of

supporting documentation

e examining a sample of asset valuation movements
since the last revaluation date and corroborating
the changes with other available information

e examining the reasonableness of the funding
available used as input for the remaining useful
lives and relevance of supporting documentation
for the estimates

e testing the mathematical accuracy of the
infrastructure valuation and depreciation models.
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Recognition and measurement of service concession assets ($11.877 billion), borrowings
— financial liabilities on service concession arrangements ($694.409 million) and other
liabilities on service concession arrangement ($7.620 billion)

Refer to note 1 and note 15 in the financial report

Key audit matter How my audit addressed the key audit matter

The adoption of AASB 1059 Service Concession My procedures included, but were not limited to:
Arrangements: Grantors has significantly impacted

the reported financial position and performance. * assessing Ine approprialeness of managements

implementation process and compliance with
The new accounting standard involves a high degree AASB 1059

of complexity and certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement including
the following:

e assessing the determination and completeness of
arrangements within the scope of the new
standard by inquiring with management and

¢ Assessing if an arrangement is within the scope of inspecting contractual documents
AASB 1059 including judgements about whether
the operator is providing a public service and
whether the operator manages at least some of
those services under its own discretion.

e assessing the appropriateness of the recognition
and accounting measurement principles used to
determine the value and classification of service
concession assets, unearned revenue and

¢ Estimating the recognition and measurement of financial liabilities on service concession
the service concession asset at current arrangements
replacement cost in accordance with the cost

approach described in AASB 13 Fair Value e evaluating the qualifications, competence,

capability and objectivity of the internal and

Measurement: . . .
external subject matter experts involved in
- componentising the assets into the significant developing the current replacement cost
parts that have different useful lives valuations for service concession assets
- classifying assets into categories that have e examining the measurement estimates of service
similar replacement costs concession assets, unearned revenue and

financial liabilities on service concession
arrangements and evaluating a sample of
supporting documentation for reasonableness,
relevance, completeness and accuracy.

- estimating the gross replacement cost for each
combination of component and asset category
to develop unit rates for the modern equivalent
asset

e testing the mathematical accuracy of the models

- estimating the remaining useful life of each . )
used to calculate the service concession assets,

asset. . ) .
unearned revenue estimates and financial
e Classifying and measuring the service concession liabilities including depreciation, interest and
liabilities as a financial liability or unearned service payments.
revenue depending on how the operator is
compensated.
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Responsibilities of the department for the financial report

The Accountable Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with the Financial Accountability Act 2009, the Financial and
Performance Management Standard 2019 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for
such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

The Accountable Officer is also responsible for assessing the department's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the department or to
otherwise cease operations.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. This is not done for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department's internal controls, but
allows me to express an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the department.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the department's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
department's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. | base my conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the department to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Accountable Officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

From the matters communicated with the Accountable Officer, | determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Statement

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2021:
a) Ireceived all the information and explanations | required.

b) | consider that, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

Prescribed requirements scope

The prescribed requirements for the establishment and keeping of accounts are contained in
the Financial Accountability Act 2009, any other Act and the Financial and Performance
Management Standard 2019. The applicable requirements include those for keeping financial
records that correctly record and explain the department’s transactions and account
balances to enable the preparation of a true and fair financial report.

a:’p_-k_ et 30 August 2021

Vaughan Stemmett Queensland Audit Office

as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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